
MINUTES 

WOOLWICH TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 27, 2014 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Mayor Samuel Maccarone Jr. who made the following 

statement: 

 

The January 27, 2014 meeting of the Woolwich Township committee (as rescheduled from January 21st) 

is being called to order. Adequate notice of this meeting has been given in accordance with the Open 

Public Meetings Act. 

 

Roll Call: Armano: PRESENT Cavallaro: PRESENT Fein: ABSENT Elefante: PRESENT 

Maccarone: PRESENT 

 

Also present on the dais were Solicitor Mark Shoemaker, Director of Community Development Matt 

Blake, and Jane DiBella, Administrator/Clerk. 

 

Those present saluted the American Flag. 

 

Mayor Maccarone administered the Oath of Public Office to William Ross as Gloucester County Deputy 

Fire Coordinator. 

 

Motion was made by Committeeman Armano and seconded by Deputy Mayor Elefante to open the 

meeting to public comment. All were in favor. 

 

Stefan Cooper of 149 Tara Run addressed the Committee regarding the facility located at 230 Rainey 

Road being operated by Advoserve as a group home. He advised the Committee that he had conducted 

an internet search of the company which stated that the company services those with extreme 

behavioral disorders, sexual disorders, fire setting etc. He stated that as a parent, he wants to know how 

this facility came to be within 300 yards of a school facility and if zoning requirements were met.  He 

questioned what type of individuals were being housed, and if there are any requirements to let 

adjacent homeowners know. 

 

Mayor Maccarone called on Jim Sabetta, Code Official who was in the audience. Mr. Sabetta stated that 

approx. nine homes are in Woolwich and all facilities meet code. Solicitor Shoemaker added that the 

facilities are under the jurisdiction of the State Dept. of Human Services whose regulations supersede 

local regulations.  

 

Woolwich Police Chief Russell Marino was in the audience and was questioned as to the number and 

type of calls made to the facilities. He estimated approximately 250 annual calls to the homes, most 

being medical emergencies. 

 

Mr. Cooper asked if the Police Department is aware of the patients and their needs, and was informed 

that the department maintains a list.  

 



Solicitor Shoemaker addressed the zoning issue, advising that restrictions on zoning for these types of 

facilities were found to be unconstitutional.  He added that every town must treat these facilities as any 

other residential units. 

 

Mr. Cooper asked why nearby residents are not informed, and Mr. Shoemaker replied that they need to 

blend in with the surrounding houses. 

 

Leona Mallard, Gloucester County Representative who happened to be at the meeting, advised that the 

homes are monitored 24-7. She added that if any of the residents were sex offenders, they would have 

to register under Meghan’s Law. She clarified that the residents are those with physical and mental 

disabilities.  

 

Mr. Sabetta added that the number of homes has increased since institutions have closed. He added 

that the residences have been upgraded to ADA standards, are constantly monitored, have extra alarms, 

and that most residents are transported to day jobs. 

 

Kim Cooper of 149 Tara Run asked how adjoining residents are informed when a change in occupancy 

occurs, and was told that no such notifications were required.  

 

Michele Martinez of 132 Jockey Hollow Run noted that she is a Director of Special Education for a local 

school district. She noted that many times, the disabled may have varying degrees of emotional 

problems. She stated that she worries about the safety of the children and asked the Police Chief how 

parents can be made to feel better about this. 

 

Mayor Maccarone replied that while the Committee cannot provide all of the answers, the Committee 

would be willing to coordinate a meeting for the residents with Advoserve. 

 

Mrs. Cooper asked how someone can turn their home into a business, and was again told that the state 

supersedes zoning regulations in these types of cases. 

 

Mr. Cooper asked what responsibility the Township has to notify residents that a group home is coming. 

Mayor Maccarone replied that again, the state supersedes in these cases. The Solicitor added that the 

names of the residents and the types of their disabilities are covered under privacy rights. He also noted 

that by State Statute, the Township is required to provide this type of housing. 

 

Michelle Heffernan of 149 Windsor Drive stated that in her profession, she has assisted in opening group 

homes. She added that most of the concerns being raised have to do with a relationship with Advoserve. 

 

Mrs. Cooper replied that the situation is unacceptable, and that the Advoserve website states that 

sexual offenders are housed in these types of homes. 

 

Mayor Maccarone noted that as a former employee of the Department of Corrections, he is mindful of 

keeping children safe, and that he has full faith in the police department. He added again that the best 

the Township can do is to set up a meeting with Advoserve. 

 

Tara Martin (address inaudible) noted that having a handicapped brother, she is aware of three levels of 

disabilities. She noted that there is a criteria that must be met in order to be in group living situations, 

and that disabled people have rights as to in what environment they reside. 



Mr. Cooper noted that he is asking for assurance from the township that people displaying certain types 

of behaviors are not residing in these homes. 

 

Mayor Maccarone again stated that the best thing to do is to meet with Advoserve. 

 

Mr. Sabetta read a letter received from Advoserve stating that they are state licensed and that no one 

with harmful tendencies resides in the Woolwich homes. Copies of the letter were provided so that 

people could have contact numbers to Advoserve. Mr. Cooper replied that residents can call Advoserve 

15 times a day and that won’t help the community. 

 

Jamie Santofarro of 181 Jockey Hollow Run said that she has heard mention of multiple escapes from 

the facilities. She noted concern with this facility being close to the New Jersey Turnpike where 

wandering people may end up. She asked what type of people are supervising the residents and if the 

residents are electronically cuffed. Mention was made of a person who was seen lying in the snow, 

which is an example of not being properly supervised. 

 

Resident of 121 Kenilworth Drive asked if the state is properly licensed and what is being done to 

oversee the facility to ensure there is no abuse and neglect. She further asked if the Township could 

place a limit on the number of facilities allowed in the township. 

 

Mayor Maccarone replied that the Township has no oversight on limiting the homes, and that they serve 

a purpose, for shelter and skills. Chief Marino added that if there are ever any concerns, to call 911. 

 

Mrs. Cooper asked if there is a requirement for men to be on staff and able to physically restrain the 

residents. The Mayor again replied that oversight is through the state. Chief Marino added that the 

homes are alarmed and that the department maintains a profile list of the residents. 

 

Mr. Cooper asked if the department has a monitoring plan based on the profiles kept. 

 

Vincent Abate of 2 Karens Court asked if there is a record kept of incidents at the homes. The Chief 

replied that there are reports kept on file. Mr. Abate asked how residents know who lives in the homes 

and whether or not they are sexual predators. Mayor Maccarone replied that the state will not allow 

predators. These residents are not criminals. They cannot function mentally on their own. 

 

Mr. Cooper asked the level of disabilities and was informed that information is under privacy acts. 

 

Sandra Mills of 20 Victoria Drive asked what the township is doing to manage these homes so that nine 

doesn’t turn into forty. 

 

Mr. Shoemaker replied that the township has no authority in that regard. 

 

Mr. Mills said that he hopes the township can at least ask the state that question. Mayor Maccarone 

replied that the township will inquire. The Mayor again added that the key is developing a relationship 

with Advoserve and that the agency be called if there are ever any questions regarding the operation of 

these homes. 

 

Mr. Cooper said that those present were just a small sampling of concerned residents and that the 

township needs to help them get a level of comfort. 



Francis Capone of 185 Jockey Hollow Run said that if there are already nine of these homes in the 

township, that the Committee should be more informed about them. 

 

Mrs. Martinez said that there are certain behaviors that may make a patient harmful to themselves and 

others and that the township would be remiss if they were not aware of that. 

 

Mayor Maccarone replied that there is staff caring for the patients. Mrs. Martinez replied that she has 

checked on staff credentials and they do not have to have any education or certifications. 

 

Mrs. Heffernan suggested that by working together with Advoserve, a level of comfort might be gained. 

 

Mrs. Cooper said that most of the vehicles have Pa. plates. 

 

Mr. Curtis of 146 Jockey Hollow Run said that there was an attempted break in at his home and asked 

the Chief of there may be a correlation between the home and this incident. 

 

The Chief replied that his department apprehended several individuals and it did not seem that there 

was a connection to Advoserve. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding obtaining certain information regarding incidents and the Advoserve 

residents through the Open Public Records Act.  Mrs. DiBella advised that records can be obtained under 

the Act, but that protected information would have to be redacted. 

 

A sign in sheet was provided to the residents so that they can be contacted once a meeting has been 

coordinated with Advoserve.  

 

Motion was made by Committeewoman Cavallaro and seconded by Committeeman Armano to call a 

brief recess at 8:11 p.m. All were in favor. 

 

The meeting reconvened at 8:30 p.m. at which time motion was made by Committeeman Armano and 

seconded by Committeewoman Cavallaro to close the public portion. All were in favor. 

 

Motion was made by Committeeman Armano and seconded by Deputy Mayor Elefante to accept the 

following reports as submitted for the month of December: 

Tax Collector:   $470,758.20 remitted YTD $35,253,506.21 

Municipal Court:  $8,566.76/Woolwich $2.50/Swedesboro 

Police:    Monthly Activity 

Park Director:   Monthly Activity 

All were in favor. Cavallaro abstained 

 

Mayor Maccarone read the following resolutions by title only for the Committee’s consideration: 

 

R-2014-30 Resolution Authorizing Budget Appropriation Transfers During the First Three Months of 

the Succeeding Year for the Township of Woolwich, Count y of Gloucester, State of New Jersey 

Motion: Elefante Second: Armano All in favor 

 

R-2014-31 Resolution Amending Resolution R-2014-08 Regarding Municipal Court Staff 

Motion: Elefante Second: Cavallaro All in favor 



 

R-2014-32 Resolution Authorizing Hiring for Per Diem Employees to Conduct Snow Removal 

Motion: Armano Second: Cavallaro All in favor 

 

R-2014-33 Resolution Authorizing the Tax Collector to Transfer or Refund Overpayment of Taxes 

Motion: Cavallaro Second: Armano All in favor 

 

R-2014-34 Resolution Authorizing Senior, Disabled Person or Surviving Spouse/Civil Union Deduction 

for the Year 2013 Motion: Armano Second: Cavallaro All in favor 

 

R-2014-35 Resolution Authorizing Municipal Services Agreement Between the Township of Woolwich 

and the Oaks at Weatherby  LLC Motion: Armano Second: Elefante 

Committeeman Elefante thanked the Solicitor and Solid Waste/Recycling Coordinator for their work in 

bringing the agreement to fruition. All were in favor. 

 

R-2014-36 Resolution Authorizing the Execution of Woolwich Township Farmland Preservation 

Program Conditional Option Agreement Regarding Daylesford Meadows Property 

Motion: Armano Second: Elefante 

Mr. Blake noted that the Certified Market Value has been accepted, and closing should be within the 

next few months, thereby taking thirty one approved units off of the books. All were in favor. 

 

R-2014-37 Resolution Authorizing the Hiring of Class I Officers within the Woolwich Township Police 

Department Motion: Armano Second: Cavallaro All in favor 

 

R-2014-38 Resolution Authorizing Agreement for Supplemental Snow Removal 

Motion: Elefante Second: Armano All in favor 

 

R-2014-39 Resolution of the Township of Woolwich Removing a Member of the Woolwich Township 

Business Development Advisory Committee Motion: Elefante     Second: Armano     All in favor 

 

The Administrator/Clerk provided her report as self explanatory. There were no questions. 

 

Mrs. DiBella further provided a recap of the engineering transition. 

 

The Director of Community Development presented his report at which time he advised of a meeting 

held with D3 and county rep.’s regarding the Kings Hwy. Rt. 322 intersection, noting that no strong time 

line or commitment was received. He further noted that it was made clear that the intersection should 

be planned for the future build out of the corridor as opposed to current conditions. 

 

Committeeman Armano asked if the 2017 time line is in jeopardy. Mr. Blake replied that he also would 

hate to live with the proposed timeline, but that the most important thing is to plan for future build out. 

He added that the township still plans to work with NJDOT in the creation of an Access Management 

Plan to be done in tandem with the Master Plan Reexamination.  

 

Mr. Blake then reported on his discussions with the Office of Planning and Advocacy regarding the TDR 

Plan and next steps. 

 



He also advised the Committee that they should reconsider renewal of the farming lease on the 

LaPalomento Park in an effort to better conduct the wetlands delineation. He added that broken field 

tile drains may prove to result in a less useable area than what we might want.  

 

He also advised of the Columbia Gas remediation of the former Swedesboro MGP site. He suggested 

that the Township formally object to the discharge of water into the creek within township property. 

 

In other matters, Mr. Blake advised that he has had discussion with the Suasion Marketing Group 

regarding marketing the Rt. 322 corridor. It was suggested that the firm’s rep. be asked to attend the 

February 3rd meeting of the Township Committee to present to the Committee a plan and proposal 

which may result in a jump start to the corridor growth. 

 

The Director of Community Development further advised that he is seeking guidance through the SADC 

as to TDR issues. He further advised that he is seeking the guidance of various attorneys’ skilled in land 

use to develop a scope of work to provide assistance as to the ability of the township to purchase 

credits. 

 

The following liaison reports were offered: 

 

Committeeman Armano:  Streets/Roads; Public works has gone over and above their scope of work with 

the numerous storms. Salt budget has been exceeded by $32,000 so far. Library System; No report. 

Ordinance Review: Will meet with the Administrator to go over ordinances. 

 

Committeewoman Cavallaro: Buildings and Grounds; Commended Public Works for their work. Green  

Acres conducted compliance tour of park facilities. Solar array training is scheduled and ribbon cutting  

will be scheduled. Environmental Commission; Attended first meeting. Discussed rocket composter  

project which is operational and been integrated into the Kingsway curriculum. Plans underway for 2014  

community garden. Discussed fencing, landscape design and project awareness. Planning spring and  

summer events. Three kayaking events will be held. Looking into exercise stations in the park and  

investigating bike trail design.  S/W School District: Will meet to discuss opportunities for shared  

services.  
 

Deputy Mayor Elefante:  Finance; Asked that the Committee read the CFO’s report. Noted that the  

township is in good shape to lapse some 2013 budget items into surplus. Have been working on white  

board as to budgeting with CFO. CFO will attend township committee meetings after each tax quarter to  

update and provide financial reports. Construction and Zoning Code Enforcement; Code meeting was  

held on 1-8. Discussed property maintenance, water runoff, vacant property foreclosures. Rental  

registrations are underway. Two demo permits have been issued. Municipal Court; total of 4684 tickets  

in 2013. Trash/Recycling; Discussed 2013 numbers and anticipated numbers for 2014 budget.  

 

The Deputy Mayor added that he has had discussions regarding start up of a VFW post in Woolwich. A  

presentation will be given at the 2-3 meeting of the Township Committee. Committeeman Armano  

asked how the township can assist the VFW. The Deputy Mayor replied that work is underway to find a  

location for them to meet, and that in the meantime, they have been offered meeting space in the  

municipal building.  

 

Mayor Maccarone: Police, Noted hiring of Class I Officers. Thanks to the Lt.’s for going through the  

interview process. Fire and EMS; Attended annual Fire Company Banquet and seating of 2014 Officers. A  



subcommittee will be formed to look into a parade either in lieu of or in conjunction with the tree  

lighting ceremony. Ag/Open Space; Great committee working to further preservation goals. 1,300 acres  

have been preserved so far.  KRHS School District; Will meet with Superintendent Lavender on a  

monthly basis. Parks and Recreation: Conducted and attended re-gift bingo event. More fundraising  

events are being planned. Movie Night scheduled for January 31st at the Stratton School.  

 

The Mayor added that Parks and Recreation are considering getting on a waiting list for carnival which  

would be held in place of Fun Day. 

 

Deputy Mayor Elefante also advised that with the absence of Committeeman Fein, the Business  

Development Advisory Committee met. Goals and objectives are outstanding. New applicants will be  

interviewed for vacant positions.  

 

Motion was made by Committeeman Armano and seconded by Committeewoman Cavallaro to approve  

Resolution R-2014-40 Resolution for Closed Session. All were in favor.  

 

The Committee entered closed session at 9:04 p.m. for the purpose of discussing the following matters: 

  Contractual Matters: Police Contract 

  Contractual Matter-Sewer 

  Personnel Matters-Plumbing Official Resignation 

 

The regular meeting reconvened at 10:07 p.m. 

 

There was no old business. 

 

Under new business, the Committee discussed whether to re-new or re-bid concession services at Locke 

Avenue Park. After such discussion, motion was made by Committeeman Armano and seconded by 

Deputy Mayor Elefante to authorize a re-bid of service. All were in favor. 

 

The Committee accepted the recommendation of the Administrator in conjunction with that of the CFO 

to authorize advertisement of RFP for Financial Advisor.  

 

The Committee further authorized the advertisement of a janitorial position within the park as opposed 

to the position of park ranger. 

 

Deputy Mayor Elefante moved to accept the resignation of Steve D’Amico as Plumbing Official and 

suggested the Committee approve the recommendation of Code Official Jim Sabetta to name Fabrizio 

Flaino as his replacement for a four year term per NJUCC Code and further to add Ron Mertz and Steve 

D’Amico to the inspection substitute list.  Committeeman Armano seconded. All were in favor. 

 

The Committee discussed and were in agreement to not renew the lease of the LaPalomento land for  

farming purposes. The lease of the land in the rear of the municipal building was re-authorized. 

 

Motion was made by Deputy Mayor Elefante and seconded by Committeeman Armano to authorize  

Title Work Proposal on Daylesford Meadows as presented by Presidential Title in the amount of  

$5,584.50. All were in favor.  

 

Motion was made by Deputy Mayor Elefante and seconded by Committeewoman Cavallaro to authorize  



a survey of the Palladino property to Bach Associates in the amount of $8,700.00. All were in favor.  

 

Motion was made by Deputy Mayor Elefante to authorize a Preliminary Assessment/Soil Sampling  

Proposal/Historic Pesticide Sampling on Block 5, Lots 4 and 11 to GEI in the amount of $9,940.00 as  

described by the DOCD. Committeeman Armano seconded. All were in favor.  

 

Also under new business, the Committee authorized the Solicitor to seek a proposal from Ed Molinari for  

an appraisal of land upon which to base an option agreement.  

 

Mayor Maccarone advised that the Warriors Baseball Club is seeking approval to hold a beer garden in  

conjunction with an upcoming tournament. The Mayor has asked a representative to make a  

presentation to the Committee. 

 

Motion was made by Committeewoman Cavallaro and seconded by Committeeman Armano to  

authorize the Park Director to be placed on a carnival waiting list. All were in favor.  

 

Motion was made by Committeewoman Cavallaro and seconded by Committeeman Armano to approve  

the minutes of the January 6, 2014 Reorganization meeting. All were in favor. 

 

Based upon the fact that there was not a quorum to vote on the minutes of December 30, 2013  

meeting, those minutes will be presented at the ensuing meeting.  

 

Motion was made by Deputy Mayor Elefante and seconded by Committeeman Armano to approve the  

bills and P.O.’s presented by the finance officer subject to the Mayor’s final review. All were in favor. 

 

Hearing no more business, motion was made by Committeeman Armano and seconded by  

Committeewoman Cavallaro to adjourn the meeting. All were in favor. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:22 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Jane DiBella 

Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

Minutes not verbatim 

Audio recording on file 

      


